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Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335 phone 
(702) 732-9385 fax 
eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 
Department: H  

 
 
Date of Hearing:  September 17, 2018 
Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

Oral Argument Requested: ☒Yes ☐ No 

 
PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR 

MODIFICATION OF TIMESHARE SCHEDULE AND 
COUNTERMOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF PHYSICAL CUSTODY 

TO JOINT; HOLIDAY AND VACATION SCHEDULE AND WEEK 
ON/WEEK OFF TIMESHARE, & MODIFICATION OF CHILD SUPPORT  
 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby opposes Defendant’s 

Motion and submits his Countermotion requesting the Court issue an Order: 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
8/23/2018 5:09 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2. Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare; 

3. Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B; 

4. Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and, 

5. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

This Opposition and Countermotion is made and based on the Memorandum 

of Points and Authorities set forth below, the Declaration of Kevin Adrianzen 

attached hereto, all papers and pleadings on file herein, and evidence presented by 

counsel, if any, at the hearing.  

DATED this 23rd day of August, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Mom’s motion seeks to cut Dad’s already limited time—despite Mom’s 

significant history of poor co-parenting and lack of respect for Dad’s role in Ryder’s 

life. Dad has another child whom he has joint physical custody of and it is in Ryder’s 

best interest to have a more equal custodial schedule with both of his parents.  

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS 

A. History of the Parties 

 Plaintiff Kevin Adrianzen (“Dad”) and Defendant Paige Petit (“Mom”) 

divorced in 2014. They have one child together: Ryder, aged 4.1  

 The parties were unable to agree to custody terms in their original divorce and 

ultimately had an evidentiary hearing in June 2014.  

 After the evidentiary hearing, the Court made the following relevant findings 

and orders: 

1. Court did not find any acts of domestic violence; 

2. There is a level of conflict between the parties and the 

grandparents, which is a negative factor for the child; 

3. Disputes are not handled in a mature way; 

                                                 

1 Ryder was born September 22, 2013, thus is almost 5.  
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4. Mom is designated as primary physical custodian, with Dad’s 

visitation after Ryder’s first birthday being weekly, Saturday 

6:00 p.m. to Monday at 6:00 p.m.2 ; and  

5. The parties have joint legal custody.  

The Court made no specific best interest findings as to why it awarded Mom 

primary physical custody or why it set the visitation schedule that it did.   

B. Mom Regularly Violates Dad’s Joint Legal Custody Rights 

 In the four years since the Court’s last order, there have been numerous co-

parenting issues and continuing conflict.  

 Mom violates Dad’s joint legal custody rights regularly. In March 2018, Dad 

deposed Mom in a separate case. 3  During that deposition, Mom acknowledged 

numerous medical and dental appointments that she unilaterally took Ryder to—

without informing Dad. 

· Q.· ·Who is Ryder's doctor? 
A.· ·It's Dr. Dani.· It's D-a-n-i, at Health Care Pediatrics. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·When's the last time he's seen Dr. Dani? 
· · · ·  A.· ·It was -- it was late last year.· I believe it was about October. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·What was that for? 
· · ·   ·A.· ·The flu shot. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Was Kevin present at that appointment? 

A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Did he know about that appointment? 
                                                 

2 The court escalated the visitation at Ryder’s first birthday, acknowledging his age and time 
spent with Mom at that point.  
3 Paige was a witness in a separate case involving Kevin and his other child’s mother, case # D-
17-557607-C.  
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· · ·   ·A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Do you remember the last time he saw Dr. Dani before that? 
·· · · ·  A.· ·For his four-year checkup in September. 
·· · · ·  ·· · · ·Q.· ·Was Kevin present at that appointment? 
· · ·          ·A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Did Kevin know about that appointment? 
· · · ·  A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·I promise I'm not going to do this for his whole life, but what was 
his last appointment before the four-year checkup with Dr. Dani? 
· · · ·  A.· ·I believe it was his three-year checkup. I don't believe he went back 
for anything.· I'm not sure. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Was Kevin present at that appointment? 
· · ·   A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Did he know about that appointment? 
· · · ·  A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Over the last two years, has he seen -- aside from dentists, which 
I'll ask you about in a minute, has he seen any other doctors besides Dr. Dani? 
· ·   A.· ·No. 

Q.· ·Has he seen -- 
· · ·  · A.· ·Sorry.· He's seen, like, another pediatrician within the same health 
practice when -- 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Was it one of the appointments that you talked about? 
· · · ·  A.· ·No.· It was for like a sick visit when Dr. Dani was not in office. 
·· · · ·  Q.· ·Do you remember when that was? 
·· · · ·  A.· ·It was probably back in maybe 2016. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·What was wrong? 
· · · ·  A.· ·He had -- I believe it was for a rash that he had.· I'm not completely 
sure. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·You think it was a rash, though? 
· · · ·  A.· ·I think so.· I think that, yeah. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Was Kevin present at that appointment? 
· · · ·  A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Did he know about that appointment? 
· · · ·  A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Does Ryder see a dentist? 
· · · ·  A.· ·Yes. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·When is the last time he went there? 
· · · ·  A.· ·He went -- I believe it was last month, February, for a checkup. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Was Kevin present at that appointment? 
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· · · ·  A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Did he know about it? 
· · · ·  A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·When's the last time he was at the dentist before that? 
· · · ·  A.· ·It was last year.· It was -- I think it was late last year.· I don't 
remember what month it was, though.· Probably around October. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Any issues at that appointment? 
· · · ·  A.· ·Yeah.· At that one he had his cavity filled. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Just one? 
· · · ·  A.· ·It was two, I believe. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Was Kevin at that appointment? 
· · · ·  A.· ·No. 
· · · ·  Q.· ·Did he know about that appointment? 
· · · ·  A.· ·No. 
· 

 In the last four years, Mom has told Dad about one doctor’s appointment for 

Ryder, and it was on her way out of the door.  

C. Mom’s House, Boyfriend, and Lack of Co-Parenting 

 Mom lives with her current boyfriend with whom she has two children with. 

Dad believes, and Mom confirmed during her deposition, that Mom’s boyfriend has 

a criminal record that includes at least two drug charges, a DUI in California, and an 

open DUI case in Nevada (also driving without a license).4 Dad believes Mom is 

living in a two-bedroom apartment with her boyfriend, their two children, and 

Ryder— five people total. Ryder has said things to Dad that make him think Mom’s 

boyfriend has been physically abusive to Ryder—although Kevin cannot prove it.   

                                                 

4 Case # 17M10033X. 
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 Kevin also has concerns over Mom’s care for Ryder. Dad noticed Ryder had 

cavities, which he did not feel a child so young should have. One of Ryder’s fillings 

then fell out and Dad had to tell Mom because again, she did not notice. Dad 

contacted Mom to inform her and ask for Ryder’s dentist information, so he could 

take him to the dentist. Mom never responded.  

 It is possible Mom did not respond because she blocked Dad’s number on her 

phone, something she has done before; and proudly told him that she has done. Mom 

has also told Dad that she purposely does not respond to certain messages.  

 When Ryder was three-years-old, Mom was involved in a car accident with 

Ryder, which required him to go to the hospital. Mom never told Dad. Dad found 

out from Ryder and asked Mom for the medical records and accident report. Mom 

provided partial medical records, but enough for Dad to see that Mom was using 

only her last name on Ryder’s insurance and hospital records, despite the court 

ordering a hyphenated last name for Ryder. No police report was ever provided to 

Dad. 

 Prior to Mom’s current living situation, she lived with her parents until they 

divorced.  Mom then lived in Summerlin with her boyfriend at his father’s residence 

for one year. Mom would never provide the address of her boyfriend’s father’s 

residence to Dad. For the first year thereafter, Mom refused to tell Dad where she 

(Ryder) lived.  
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 Around this time,  Dad learned from Ryder that there was a babysitter 

watching him—which surprised Dad as Mom did not work. Dad asked Mom who 

was watching Ryder. Mom never responded. Mom later confirmed during her 

deposition that she was in fact working. 

 Dad has had concerns, for over two years, over speech issues with Ryder and 

expressed these concerns to Mom and his desire to have an evaluation done. Mom 

ignored.  

 On numerous occasions Dad has asked Mom about injuries on Ryder. Mom 

never responds.  

 Mom was forced to respond on one occasion however (after Dad had been 

informing Mom about it for two weeks with no response from Mom):   Ryder showed 

up at Dad’s house with scabies—which required both homes be treated for 

infestation.  

 On occasion, Mom has sent medication for Ryder with no instructions as to 

how to administer— or even what it is for.  

 Mom has refused to be flexible and allow Dad any additional time with Ryder. 

This includes for parties, family events, family birthdays, brief vacations, or any 

other father/son experiences Dad would try to plan that occurred outside his set time. 

Mom’s position is she will not do anything the court has not ordered her to do.  
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 Mom has verbally degraded (and hit) Dad at exchanges— in front of Ryder; 

and routinely shoves cameras in his or his family members’ faces at exchanges. On 

one occasion Mom hit Dad with her phone while she was recording him because 

Dad was trying to talk to Mom because he was unable to text her as she had blocked 

his number.  

 Dad had his Mother do the exchanges, hoping that would help. It did not. Mom 

tried running Grandma over at one exchange, while Ryder was in the car with 

Grandma—prompting Grandma to call the police.  Thereafter Mom unilaterally 

decided Grandma (Dad’s Mom) could no longer do the exchanges regardless of what 

the Judge had advised in court. 

 Dad contacted Mom about putting Ryder in swimming lessons. Mom’s 

response: she had already put him in swimming lessons at a swimming academy but 

never told Dad and never offered Dad to come.  

 Very recently, Ryder had his first day of kindergarten. This occurred on Dad’s 

timeshare. Understandably, Mom expressed a desire to be at this milestone moment. 

Also, understandably, Dad was reluctant because of the non-stop drama around the 

parties’ exchanges, but did not stop Mom from being present for the event. 

 Prior to going into his classroom, Ryder posed for a photo. Dad stepped back 

and allowed Mom to go first. Mom got a photo of Ryder, which takes time as he is 

only four-years-old. Just as Mom finished, Ryder’s teacher called him into the 
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classroom—meaning Dad did not get to take a photo. Dad asked Mom if she could 

send him the photo she had taken. Mom refused. Mom’s reason? Dad’s Mom never 

gave her photos and videos taken during Ryder’s birth, almost five years prior. 

Kevin has tried to explain that those photos are his mother’s and he has no control 

over them. Court mediators from both Family Court and Nevada Supreme Court 

have also explained the same to Mom. 

 Mom still refuses to share the photo with Dad.  

D. Changes in Dad’s Life Since 2014 

Dad has always worked blue-collar jobs, until a motorcycle accident in May 

2016. This accident left Dad with many permanent physical injuries. Because of this 

accident, Dad had surgery and physical therapy for approximately six months, being 

on FMLA during this time.  

After returning to work, Dad was not able to perform the same tasks as before. 

Dad ended up being laid off in June 2017. Dad received unemployment insurance 

through January 2018. Dad searched for employment during this time but was not 

successful. Recently, Dad started a job as a carpenter apprentice. Unfortunately, this 

job did not work out as Dad’s physical limitations from injury caused him to fail to 

pass the minimum skills test for the job. Dad is currently enrolled at College of 

Southern Nevada with the goal of finding a white-collar career he can physically 

handle. Dad is still seeking part-time employment while in school.  
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But it has not all been bleak for Dad during this period. In January 2015, Dad’s 

daughter Raelynn was born. Dad currently has joint physical custody of Raelynn, 

with a week on/week off timeshare.  

 This opposition and countermotion follows. 

III. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. The Court Should Deny Mom’s Motion and Grant Dad’s 

Countermotion to Modify Custody 

 When the court considers modifying a primary physical custody order, the 

court must use a two-step process.5 First, the court must determine if there has been 

a substantial change in circumstances affecting the welfare of the child since the last 

custodial order.6 If there has, the court must then consider whether modification of 

custody serves the child’s best interest.7 The moving party has the burden of proof 

under both prongs.8 

The specific findings the court must make when considering a child’s best 

interest under NRS 125C.0035(4) are as follows: 

(a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity 
to form an intelligent preference as to his or her physical custody. 
(b) Any nomination of a guardian for the child by a parent. 
(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent 
associations and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. 

                                                 

5 Ellis v. Carucci, 123 Nev. 145, 150 (2007). 
6 Id.  
7 Id.  
8 Id.  
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(d) The level of conflict between the parents. 
(e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the 
child. 
(f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 
(g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. 
(h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. 
(i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling. 
(j) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of 
the child. 
(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 
has engaged in an act of domestic violence against the child, a parent 
of the child or any other person residing with the child. 
(l) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 
has committed any act of abduction against the child or any other child. 
 

Here, there has been a substantial change in circumstances since the last 

custodial order, and modifying custody is in Ryder’s best interest. 

1. There has been a substantial change in circumstances. 

 First, Mom acknowledges in her Motion that there has been a substantial 

change in circumstances since the parties’ last custodial order—citing her own 

engagement and blended family. Dad has those same circumstances, plus more.  

 In addition to the change in Dad’s work schedule and his daughter of whom 

he has joint physical custody, Mom’s actions since the last custodial order are a 

sufficient change in circumstances affecting Ryder’s welfare.  

 Mom’s complete lack of co-parenting with Dad since the last custodial order 

is alarming. Mom will not even share a photo she took of Ryder on his first day of 
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school with Dad. This would take less than 5 seconds via text. Mom refuses, citing 

a five-year-old axe she is grinding with Dad’s Mother.  

 Mom does not tell Dad about doctors’ appointments. Mom does not tell Dad 

about dentist appointments. Mom blocks Dad’s phone number. Mom is cohabitating 

with a probable substance abuser in tight quarters. Mom refuses to allow Dad any 

additional time, no matter what the reason for Dad’s request.  Mom moves without 

informing Dad or giving him the addresses.  Mom also takes Ryder out of state 

without informing Dad. 

 Mom enrolled Ryder in school, to begin kindergarten this school year, without 

even discussing with Dad.  And she has placed Ryder on a wait list for a charter 

school without discussing with Dad.   

 Right now, Dad has two days a week of visitation. Mom’s request is for Dad 

to have three days per week— but only on the first, third, and fifth weeks. This 

means that in most months, Dad’s timeshare would go from 8 days a month, to six. 

And not that Ryder has started kindergarten, this change would not allow Dad to 

substantially participate in Ryder’s education. Considering Mom’s history, her 

request is not surprising.  

 Based on the foregoing, there are numerous substantial changes of 

circumstances affecting Ryder’s welfare since the last custodial order.   
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2. It is in Ryder’s Best Interest for the Parties to Share Joint 

Physical Custody 

A review of the statutory best interest factors is as follows: 

(a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity 
to form an intelligent preference as to his or her physical custody. 
 
This factor is not applicable. 
 
(b) Any nomination of a guardian for the child by a parent. 
 
This factor is not applicable. 
 
(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent 
associations and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. 
 
This factor favors Dad. Mom has been given a chance and her performance is 

abysmal. She admitted in her deposition she refuses to allow Dad any more time 

than the court has ordered.  Mom blocks Dad’s phone number. Mom refuses to co-

parent.  

(d) The level of conflict between the parents. 
 
This factor favors Dad. The parties are high conflict. Mom shoves a camera 

in Dad’s face during exchanges, literally— right in his face.  Mom has also hit Dad 

with her phone in front of Ryder. Documenting exchanges is one thing, but 

antagonizing is another.  

 
(e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the 
child. 
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This factor favors Dad. Mom refuses to cooperate. Mom admits she does not 

tell Dad about doctors’ or dentists’ appointments. Mom does not tell Dad about 

extracurricular activities in which she enrolls Ryder.  Yet Dad has informed Mom 

when he signed Ryder up for indoor soccer and private swimming lessons. 

(f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 
 
This factor is neutral.  
 
(g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. 
 
This factor favors Dad. Mom refused to consider a speech evaluation for 

Ryder. Mom places her conflict with Dad above Ryder’s needs.  

(h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. 
 
This factor is neutral. Both parents have a good relationship with Ryder.  
 
(i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling. 
 
Both parents have other children. Currently this factor only favors Mom 

as her other children are with Ryder five days a week vs. two days a week, 

every other week,  with Dad’s other daughter.  And Ryder’s time with his 

sister would be less if Mom’s visitation modification request is granted. 

(j) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of 
the child. 
This factor is not applicable.  
 
(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 
has engaged in an act of domestic violence against the child, a parent 
of the child or any other person residing with the child. 
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This factor is not applicable.  
 
(l) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 
has committed any act of abduction against the child or any other child. 
 
This factor is not applicable.  
 
Based on the foregoing, Dad requests this court modify custody to joint 

physical custody, with a week on/week off timeshare that matches Dad’s other 

custodial timeshare, which has exchanges on Friday.  Dad also requests Dept. B’s 

holiday and vacation schedule that also matches Dad’s other custodial schedule. 

B. The Court Should Modify Child Support 

 Parents have a duty to support their children by providing necessary 

maintenance, health care, education, and support.9 A parent with physical custody is 

entitled to recovery of financial support from the non-custodial parent.10 Nevada law 

sets child support for one minor child at 18% of the parent’s gross monthly income.11 

When parties have joint physical custody, child support is calculated by 

determining each party’s statutory percentage based on their respective gross 

monthly incomes; and then subtract the difference between the two with the higher 

income earner paying the lower income earner the difference.12  

                                                 

9 NRS 125B.020. 
10 NRS 125B.030. 
11 NRS 125B.070. 
12 Wright v. Osburn, 114 Nev. 1367, 1369 (Nev. 1998).  
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NRS 125B.080(9)13 contains factors a court must consider when adjusting an 

obligor’s child support from the statutory formula. NRS 125B.080(2) also requires 

any specific agreement between parties that is not consistent with the statutory 

formula state sufficient facts in accordance with subsection 9 to justify deviation 

from the statutory formula. 

Here, both parties are unemployed. Mom lives with her boyfriend, who 

supports her. And Dad lives with his Mother while he attends school. Based on their 

respective gross monthly incomes, Dad’s child support obligation should be 

$100.00; and Mom’s child support obligation should be $100.00. Therefore, under 

Wright, if the court orders joint physical custody, child support should be set at zero. 

                                                 

13 NRS 125B.080(9) The court shall consider the following factors when adjusting the amount of 
support of a child upon specific findings of fact: 
      (a) The cost of health insurance; 
      (b) The cost of child care; 
      (c) Any special educational needs of the child; 
      (d) The age of the child; 
      (e) The legal responsibility of the parents for the support of others; 
      (f) The value of services contributed by either parent; 
      (g) Any public assistance paid to support the child; 
      (h) Any expenses reasonably related to the mother’s pregnancy and confinement; 
      (i) The cost of transportation of the child to and from visitation if the custodial parent moved 
with the child from the jurisdiction of the court which ordered the support and the noncustodial 
parent remained; 
      (j) The amount of time the child spends with each parent; 
      (k) Any other necessary expenses for the benefit of the child; and 
      (l) The relative income of both parents. 
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And even if the court does not award joint physical custody, Dads child support 

should be set at $100.00.  

C. The Court Must Deny Mom’s Request for Attorney’s Fees 

 The court may award attorney fees to a prevailing party; or when the court 

finds a party has brought a claim or maintained a defense without reasonable grounds 

or to harass the opposing party.14 The court shall liberally construe this provision in 

favor of awarding attorney’s fees in appropriate situations.15       

When deciding attorney’s fees awards in family law matters, four 

requirements were set forth16: 1) counsel must cite a legal basis for attorney’s fees; 

2) the Court must evaluate the Brunzell17 factors; 3) the Court must consider any 

disparity in income of the parties under Wright 18 ; and 4) the request must be 

supported by affidavit or other evidence.  

The court has authority in custody actions to order reasonable attorney’s fees 

in proportions and at times determined by the court.19  

                                                 

14 NRS 18.010(2)(a)-(b).  
15 Id.  
16 Miller v. Wilfong, 121 Nev. 619, 119 P.3d 727 (2005). 
17 Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat’l Bank, 85 Nev. 345 (1969). 
18 Wright v. Osburn, 114 Nev. 1367, 1370 (1998). 
19 NRS 125C.250. 
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All financial requests, including attorney’s fees, require the requesting party 

file a financial disclosure form within 2 judicial days of filing their motion or 

countermotion.20 

Here, the court must deny Mom’s request for attorney’s fees as she failed to 

file a financial disclosure form; and also, because it is meritless.  

Mom asserts she has “on numerous occasions, Defendant and her counsel 

have discussed this matter with the Defendant and his counsel including multiple 

offers of settlement which have been accepted and then subsequently rejected.” This 

is not true. Dad has attempted to discuss and work out a different custody 

arrangement with Mom and she ignores and does not respond to him. 

Dad is willing to waive all objections to confidential settlement negotiations 

being introduced to this Court and allow Mom to present any written settlement 

communications in this case, including written offers. There are none. And there are 

certainly no acceptances of offers which were later rejected. This is a fabrication.  

The court must therefore deny Mom’s request for attorney’s fees.  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

                                                 

20 EDCR 5.506(2).  
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IV. CONCLUSION 

BASED ON THE FOREGOING, Kevin Adrianzen requests this Court issue 

an Order: 

1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2. Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare; 

3. Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B; 

4. Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and, 

5. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

DATED this 23rd day of August, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 

 

  

AA000040



AA000041



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 23rd day of August, 2018, served a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s 

Opposition To Defendant’s Motion For Modification Of Timeshare Schedule And 

Countermotion For Modification Of Physical Custody To Joint; Holiday And 

Vacation Schedule And Week On/Week Off Timeshare And For Attorney’s Fees 

And Costs : 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Mel Grimes, Esq. 
melg@grimes-law.com 
olivian@grimes-law.com 

 
/s/ Crystal Beville 
Crystal Beville 
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SUPPL 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335 phone 
(702) 732-9385 fax 
eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 
Department: H  

 
 
Date of Hearing:  September 17, 2018 
Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

Oral Argument Requested: ☒Yes ☐ No 

 
SUPPLEMENT TO PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S 
MOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF TIMESHARE SCHEDULE AND 

COUNTERMOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF PHYSICAL CUSTODY 
TO JOINT; HOLIDAY AND VACATION SCHEDULE AND WEEK 

ON/WEEK OFF TIMESHARE, & MODIFICATION OF CHILD SUPPORT  
 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby opposes Defendant’s 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
8/30/2018 12:32 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Motion and submits his Supplement to his Opposition and Countermotion requesting 

the Court issue an Order: 

1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2. Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare; 

3. Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B; 

4. Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and, 

5. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

This Opposition and Countermotion is made and based on the Memorandum 

of Points and Authorities set forth below, the Declaration of Kevin Adrianzen 

attached hereto, all papers and pleadings on file herein, and evidence presented by 

counsel, if any, at the hearing.  

DATED this 30th day of August, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Mom is cohabitating and engaged to a serious drug addict. Mom has allowed 

this individual to be around the parties’ son. Mom’s home is not suitable for her to 

have primary physical custody.  

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS 

 Plaintiff Kevin Adrianzen (“Dad”) and Defendant Paige Petit (“Mom”) 

divorced in 2014. They have one child together: Ryder, aged 4.1  

 Mom’s Motion states “Since the decree of divorce was issued, the Defendant 

[Mom] become engaged [sic] and two children have been born to that relationship. 

Defendant [Mom] wishes to create a healthy environment of a nuclear family for the 

minor child and the child’s half-siblings while not denying Plaintiff [Dad] time with 

his child.” Mom also states: “The goal of the proposed timeshare is to create a stable 

and nurturing family environment for the minor child by reserving approximately 

half of his weekend time for binding with his new family.” The fiancé Mom is 

referring to is Shawn Prisco.    

Dad filed his Opposition and Countermotion to Paige’s Motion to Modify 

timeshare on August 23, 2018. In Dad’s Opposition and Countermotion, he raised 

                                                 

1 Ryder was born September 22, 2013, thus is almost 5.  
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concerns over Shawn and substance abuse by him. At the time of filing, Dad was 

still amassing supporting documentation.  

 During Mom’s deposition on March 19, 2018, Mom was asked about her 

fiancé, Shawn Prisco, and his criminal history: 

Q.· ·Do you know if Shawn has ever been arrested before? 
 · ·  A.· ·Yes. 

Q.· ·What for? 
A.· ·Possession of marijuana. 
Q.· ·Anything else that you're aware of? 
A.· ·No. 
Q.· ·How many times? 
A.· ·Twice. 
Q.· ·Twice that you're aware of? 
A.· ·Yes. 

·  Q.· ·Those are the only two arrests that you're aware of?· 
A.· ·I believe there's one in California.·I'm not sure. 

·  Q.· ·For what? 
A.· ·I think it was a DUI.·I'm not sure, though. 

·  Q.· ·Do you know if Shawn has ever been to rehabilitation for drugs 
or alcohol? 

A.· ·No, I'm not sure. 
·  Q.· ·Not sure?· So he may have been, but you're not aware? 

A.· ·Yes. 
  

 Either Mom was lying, or she has no idea who she is engaged to, has two 

children with, and allows around Ryder.  

 Shawn has a serious and recent history with hard drugs. In May 2017, Shawn 

was arrested for possession of drug paraphernalia and resisting arrest/obstructing a 
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police officer. While these charges alone are troubling, the facts surrounding them 

are even more so.2  

 According to the officer’s report, on May 5, 2017 around 7:00 p.m. the police 

were called to the area of 1575 Warm Springs Road in Henderson Nevada with 

reports that a male was “asking people for drugs.” The suspect was described as 

“thin” and with “black pants with holes in them.” He was later identified as Shawn 

Prisco.  

 The police approached Shawn to talk to him, but Shawn walked away, and 

continued to walk away despite the officer saying he needed to speak to him; and 

Shawn being advised by the officer that if he did not comply, the officer would use 

force.  The officer ended up using force and placing Shawn in handcuffs.  

 The officer searched Shawn and found a “clear glass pipe with a broken end, 

tinfoil, and burnt residue, lighter, and miscellaneous pill wrapped in paper towel.” 

Based on the officer’s training and experience, he identified all the paraphernalia as 

the type used to smoke heroin of methamphetamine. The officer suspected at least 

one of the pills was Xanax. 

                                                 

2 See Henderson Municipal Court Docket Sheet, criminal records, and criminal pleadings listed 
as Exhibit 3.  
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 The case just concluded in May 2018, with Shawn getting 60 days in jail 

(suspended), and court ordered rehabilitation of a minimum of 24 weeks. Basically, 

Shawn is right now (or should be) in a rehabilitation program. 

 The above event is not an isolated incident of substance abuse by Shawn. In 

2016 Shawn was charged with driving under the influence in California, as well as 

carrying a concealed “dirk or dagger.” According to California penal code, a “dirk 

or dagger” is defined as: 

1. a knife or other instrument, 
2. with or without a hand guard, 
3. that is capable of ready use as a stabbing weapon, and 
4. that may inflict a significant or substantial physical injury or death.3 

 

As if this all was not enough, Shawn’s May 2017 brush with the law brought 

on by him randomly soliciting strangers for drugs was not rock-bottom. In April of 

this year (2018), Shawn was again charged with driving under the influence (drugs) 

and driving on a revoked license. Shawn was charged as first offense, with Nevada 

apparently not knowing about the prior California charge. On this DUI, Shawn was 

under the influence of THC and alprazolam (Xanax)— the same pills found on him 

a year earlier. This case just concluded on August 22, 2018.  

                                                 

3 California Penal Code 16470.  
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None of these are new developments. On June 11, 2016, Shawn Prisco’s 

mother took to Facebook to plea to anyone who would listen about Shawn’s drug 

problems.4 The post states: 

I am Shawn Priscos mother. My son is a drug addict spiraling out of control. 
Shawn lies, steals, cheats, and does whatever he can do to feed his addiction. 
I’m reaching out to all that know Shawn and am asking to all not support his 
addiction or be the one that gives him 20 bucks so he can buy drugs that kill 
him. Shawn has an open door to return to Rehab for the help he needs.  We 
have recently learned that Shawn is going to be a father but not if he 
continues on this path of destruction. . .  
 

She further states that this post is very hard for her, but she is very concerned 

about those unknowingly feeding her son’s addiction.  

This post came at a time when Shawn was living with Mom [Defendant], 

Mom was pregnant with their first child, and Mom had primary custody of Ryder.  

In fact, only two weeks prior to this post by Shawn’s mother, Shawn posted 

photos of a “road trip” he took to Pismo Beach.5 His post includes a photo of Shawn 

going into the ocean— with Ryder.  

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

                                                 

4 See Facebook Post of Jaime Schemp listed as Exhibit 2.  
5 See Facebook post by Shawn listed as Exhibit 1.  
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According to Mom’s deposition, as far as she knows, Shawn has never sought 

rehab. And Mom’s motion wishes to preserve this “nuclear” family for Ryder.  

 This opposition and countermotion follows. 

III. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. The Court Should Modify Custody to Joint Physical Custody 

 When the court considers modifying a primary physical custody order, the 

court must use a two-step process.6 First, the court must determine if there has been 

a substantial change in circumstances affecting the welfare of the child since the last 

custodial order.7 If there has, the court must then consider whether modification of 

custody serves the child’s best interest.8 The moving party has the burden of proof 

under both prongs.9 

The specific findings the court must make when considering a child’s best 

interest under NRS 125C.0035(4) are as follows: 

(a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity 
to form an intelligent preference as to his or her physical custody. 
(b) Any nomination of a guardian for the child by a parent. 
(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent 
associations and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. 
(d) The level of conflict between the parents. 
(e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the 
child. 
(f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 

                                                 

6 Ellis v. Carucci, 123 Nev. 145, 150 (2007). 
7 Id.  
8 Id.  
9 Id.  
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(g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. 
(h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. 
(i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling. 
(j) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of 
the child. 
(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 
has engaged in an act of domestic violence against the child, a parent 
of the child or any other person residing with the child. 
(l) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 
has committed any act of abduction against the child or any other child. 
 

Here, as relates to the specific facts in this Supplement, there has been a 

substantial change in circumstances since the last custodial order, and modifying 

custody is in Ryder’s best interest. 

1. There has been a substantial change in circumstances. 

 As relates to the specific facts of this Supplement, since the last custodial order, 

Mom has cohabitated with, become engaged to, and had two children with someone 

who has obvious and serious drug issues. This is not a guy who dabbles in marijuana 

on the weekends. His addiction is so severe that the police were summoned because 

he was harassing complete strangers for drugs. The pipe and other materials found 

on Shawn were consistent with those used for heroin or methamphetamine. Shawn 

also has a pocket full of random pills.  

 At the same time that Shawn’s mother was taking to Facebook to plea to 

anyone who would listen about her out-of-control drug addict son, Mom [Defendant] 

was allowing Shawn to take Ryder to Pismo Beach and into the ocean.   

AA000053



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

8 
 

 Based on the foregoing, in addition to the other changes in circumstances in 

Dad’s original Opposition and Countermotion, the facts contained in this 

Supplement alone are a sufficient change since the last custodial order to warrant an 

evidentiary hearing.   

2. It is in Ryder’s Best Interest for the Parties to Share Joint 

Physical Custody 

In making a child custody determination, the sole consideration of the court 

is the best interest of the child.10 This is not achieved simply by processing the case 

through the factors that § 125.480(4) [125C.0035(4)] 11  identifies as potentially 

relevant to a child’s best interest and announcing a ruling.12 As the lead-in language 

to § 125C.0035(4) suggests, the list of factors in § 125C.0035(4) is non-exhaustive. 

In determining the best interest of a child, courts should look to the factors set forth 

in § 125.480(4) [125C.0035(4)] as well as any other relevant considerations.13 Other 

factors, beyond those enumerated in § 125.480(4) [125C.0035(4)], may merit 

consideration.14 

                                                 

10 NRS 125.0035(1). 
11 Statute has since been moved to NRS 125C.0035(4).  
12 Davis v. Ewalefo, 131 Nev. Advance Opinion 46 (2015).  
13 Id. 
14 Id. 

AA000054



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

9 
 

Dad did a full statutory best interest analysis in his Opposition and 

Countermotion. But, as relates to the facts in this Supplement, common sense best 

interest factors come into play.  

Mom is allowing Shawn Prisco to live in a home shared by Ryder. The 

information about Shawn presented in this Supplement is only what we currently 

know. Mom is not being forthcoming, lying in her deposition. Shawn does not have 

one or two marijuana charges in his past, as mom asserts. He is a drug addict-- 

begging for drugs in the streets. His mother is pleading to the world to help her son. 

Shawn has at least two DUI’s, shielding the California one from Nevada.  

People who get DUI’s often drive dozens of times under the influence before 

arrest.15 This is the guy Mom is allowing around Ryder. This is the guy Mom has 

chosen to move into Ryder’s home. This is the guy Mom has chosen to get married 

to. This is the guy Mom has chosen to have two children with. This is remarkably 

poor judgment on Mom’s part.   

Based on the foregoing, the court should modify custody to at least joint 

custody as Ryder’s primary household is not suitable.  

                                                 

15 https://www.dosomething.org/us/facts/11-facts-about-driving-under-influence.  
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IV. CONCLUSION 

BASED ON THE FOREGOING, Kevin Adrianzen requests this Court issue 

an Order: 

1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2. Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare; 

3. Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B; 

4. Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and, 

5. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

DATED this 30th day of August, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 30th day of August, 2018, served a true and correct copy of Supplement to 

Plaintiff’s Opposition To Defendant’s Motion For Modification Of Timeshare 

Schedule And Countermotion For Modification Of Physical Custody To Joint; 

Holiday And Vacation Schedule And Week On/Week Off Timeshare And For 

Attorney’s Fees And Costs : 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Mel Grimes, Esq. 
melg@grimes-law.com 
olivian@grimes-law.com 

 
/s/ Crystal Beville 
Crystal Beville 
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EXHS 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335 phone 
(702) 732-9385 fax 
eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 
Department: H 

 
 

 
PLAINTIFF’S EXHIBIT APPENDIX 

 
COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby submits the following 

exhibits in support of his Supplement to Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for 

Modification of Timeshare Schedule and Countermotion for Modification of 

Physical Custody to Join; Holiday and Vacation Schedule and Week On/Week Off 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
8/30/2018 12:32 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Timeshare, & Modification of Child Support.  Plaintiff understands that these are 

not considered substantive evidence in my case until formally admitted into evidence.  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 EXHIBIT 1:  Shawn Masonry Facebook post dated May 26, 2016 with 

photos of Shawn Prisco and minor child on Pismo Beach, California trip. 

 EXHIBIT 2: Jaime Schemp Facebook post dated June 11, 2016 re: son 

Shawn Prisco’s drug addiction. 

 EXHIBIT 3: Henderson Municipal Court Docket Sheet, criminal 

records and criminal pleadings. 

DATED this 30th day of August, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 30th day of August, 2018, served a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s Exhibit 

Appendix : 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Mel Grimes, Esq. 
melg@grimes-law.com 
olivian@grimes-law.com 

 
/s/ Crystal Beville 
Crystal Beville 
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RPLY 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335 phone 
(702) 732-9385 fax 
eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 
Department: H  

 
 
Date of Hearing:  September 17, 2018 
Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

 

 
PLAINTIFF’S REPLY TO DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO 

COUNTERMOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF PHYSICAL CUSTODY 
TO JOINT; HOLIDAY AND VACATION SCHEDULE AND WEEK 

ON/WEEK OFF TIMESHARE, & MODIFICATION OF CHILD SUPPORT 
 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby submits the following 

reply to Defendant’s Opposition requesting the Court issue an Order: 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
9/14/2018 1:54 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2.  Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare; 

3.  Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B; 

4.  Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and,  

5. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

This Reply is made and based on the Memorandum of Points and Authorities 

set forth below, the Declaration of Kevin Adrianzen attached hereto, all papers and 

pleadings on file herein, and evidence presented by counsel, if any, at the hearing.  

DATED this 14th day of September, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Paige’s Opposition to Kevin’s countermotion glosses over numerous critical 

facts without explanation—such as how she was allegedly unaware of her fianceés 

extensive and recent drug issues, including jail time. His family is posting online 

that he needs help, yet she claims ignorance. This is not believable, and the issue is 

not moot and fixed as she claims in her Opposition.  

Paige is residing (with Ryder) with a serious drug addict and criminal. A drug 

addict and criminal who gave drugs to another individual, requiring hospitalization. 

Paige fails to co-parent. Paige begins her Opposition by re-hashing her previously 

dismissed claims that she is a victim of domestic violence at the hands of Kevin; and 

that any failure of co-parenting by her is because she “withdraws” around Kevin.  

Bottom line, Paige is not credible.  

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS & ARGUMENT 

A. Prisco’s Drug and Criminal History & Paige’s Assertion that this 

is All News to Her 

 Kevin incorporates his prior facts and legal argument contained in his 

Opposition and Countermotion and adds the following:  

In Paige’s Opposition she states: 

Prior to Plaintiff’s supplement, Defendant was only aware of a DUI and 
possession of marijuana. This is not, as presented by Plaintiff, a 
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demonstration of lying but rather lack of information. Regardless, this is not 
an ongoing concern as Defendant’s fianceé’ has received substance abuse 
counselling and has abstained from the use of any illicit substances. 
 

As stated in Kevin’s motion, Paige is either: 1) lying about not knowing; or 

2) completely ignorant of who she is cohabitating with, having children with, and 

allowing to live in the same home as Ryder. 

Her fianceé’s events are not remote in time. They did not occur in his distant 

past where she might be excused from knowledge. Paige has: 1) dated Prisco for 

years; 2) has two children with him; and 3) lives with him. The most recent events 

are from 2017.  

We can review them to determine if Paige was unaware that her live-in fianceé 

had a drug and criminal history.  

Since Kevin’s Countermotion, he obtained additional criminal records on 

Paige’s fianceé [Prisco] from California.1 These records are from 2013. The first 

item of note is that Prisco’s address is listed as “transient.” Another way of saying 

homeless.  

The police were called for an apparent drug overdose. Prisco told the police 

he had a Xanax prescription (he did not) and took more than the prescribed dose. 

                                                 

1 See Visalia Police department records listed as Exhibit 4. 
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Prisco was taken to the hospital. Later, the officer met him at the hospital and the 

officer noted Prisco had approximately 45 pills in his possession.  

The officer spoke to Prisco’s father who stated he “knows his son has a drug 

problem and is addicted to Xanax.” His father also states that because of Prisco’s 

drug problem, he [father] evicted Prisco days earlier from his home.  

While at the hospital, the officer came in contact with another individual who 

was also admitted for a drug overdose. This individual told the officer that Prisco 

had given him the drugs. 

Prisco was arrested and charged with possession of schedule 4 narcotics and 

distribution.  The officer interviewed Prisco who admitted abuse of Xanax for 

several years. The records indicate that as part of his plea deal, Prisco would enter a 

live-in rehabilitation program. The case appears to have concluded at the end of 2014.  

As stated in Kevin’s supplement to his countermotion, Prisco was charged in 

2016 with driving under the influence (of Xanax) and also possession of a dangerous 

weapon. It was also in 2016 that Prisco’s mother publicly took to Facebook to tell 

everyone to not give money to her son —because he is a drug addict and you’d only 

be enabling him. It was within two weeks of this post that Prisco posted a photo of 

he and Ryder in an ocean in California. (Kevin was never notified that Ryder was 

being taken out of state.) 

AA000110



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

4 
 

Then, in April 2017, Prisco was again arrested and charged with DUI— again 

for Xanax (and THC). The case details indicate Prisco spent two days in jail for this 

offense as he was given 2 days credit for time served in the final disposition.  

Fresh off that arrest, on May 5, 2017 Prisco then had the arrest for soliciting 

drugs at a recreation center in Henderson, as well as resisting arrest. When searched 

by police, Prisco had tin foil with burnt residue, lighter, Xanax (no prescription) 

wrapped in a paper towel, and a pipe identified by officers as one typically used for 

methamphetamine or heroin. Prisco was in jail for three days for this offense prior 

to being released.  

 As part of his plea deal, Prisco was ordered to abstain from drugs.  

 In October 2017, the court issued a show cause order, with a show cause 

hearing held on October 31, 2017. At this hearing, the court found Prisco “non-

compliant” with the “no drugs” provision of his plea agreement. Prisco stipulated 

that he was non-compliant. The court sentenced him to 2 additional days in jail for 

this violation.  
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Lastly, Kevin text messaged Paige in June 2017 when he found information 

online about this incident—including a screen shot of the online newspaper article.2 

Paige never responded.3 

Considering all of the above, Paige’s assertion that she had no knowledge of 

Prisco’s drug use and arrests is not believable for the following reasons: 1) Prisco 

has spent several days in jail during times they resided together; 2) Kevin text 

messaged Paige about the incidences; and 3) Prisco’s family has publicly posted on 

social media about Prisco’s serious drug problem.  

Furthermore, Paige’s assertion that “this is not an ongoing concern as 

Defendant’s fianceé’ has received substance abuse counselling and has abstained 

from the use of any illicit substances” should not be satisfactory to this court as 

Prisco’s drug and arrest history goes back years; and he just violated his probation 

and served jail time in October for failing to comply with his non-use of drugs 

provision.  Also, it is doubtful that Paige is in any position to assess whether Prisco 

has overcome his demons since, by her account, this all went on right under her nose 

without her being aware. And that is a major problem for Ryder.  

/ / / 

                                                 

2 See text message from Kevin to Paige dated June 14, 2017 listed as Exhibit 5.  
3 It is possible she did not respond because she blocked Kevin’s number, which she has a history 
of doing.  
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B. Co-Parenting 

 Kevin provided numerous examples of Paige unilaterally taking Ryder to 

medical and dental appointments without informing him. This also included Ryder 

having to be taken to the hospital and seek follow-up treatment after an auto 

accident—which she also never told Kevin about.  

 Paige asserts in her Opposition that Kevin has unrealistic dental and medical 

expectations for Ryder; and that Kevin feels a child “should never have cavities.” 

She also asserts, without any proof, that Kevin stands in the way of “every” medical 

decision Paige tries to make. However, that cannot be true because Paige admitted 

in her deposition that she never even tells Kevin of medical and dental appointments. 

Any proof that Paige has that she has now attempted to involve Kevin in these 

decisions will be from after her April 2018 deposition, at which time she was advised 

legally that her behavior will not look good to this court. Prior to that, Paige gave no 

regard to Kevin’s legal custody rights.  

 Kevin obtained Ryder’s dental records.4 Kevin had a hard time getting these 

records because when Paige set Ryder up at Little Smiles Dental, she left the “father” 

section blank, which can be seen on the records, and she also indicated his preferred 

name to be Ryder Petit. Kevin was wrong about a filling falling out. But, what he 

                                                 

4 See Ryder’s dental records listed as Exhibit 6. 
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assumed was a hole where a filling had fallen out, was actually just a large unfilled 

cavity in Ryder’s mouth. Nevertheless, when Kevin contacted Paige as to who 

Ryder’s dentist was, she refused to say. Instead, she waited until Ryder was returned 

to her and she took him to the dentist— something Kevin was trying to do when he 

identified the problem.  Ryder has had five cavities as a four-year-old. That is not 

normal.  

 Kevin also obtained the medical records from the car accident Ryder was in 

that Paige did not tell him about.5 The medical records list Ryder’s name as “Ryder 

Blake Petit” not Ryder Petit-Adrianzen, his full legal name. Paige is fully aware of 

Ryder’s full legal name as she unsuccessfully appealed this Court’s decision to 

hyphenate Ryder’s name. Of note in these records is the complete omission of 

Kevin’s name. Under “nearest relative” for Ryder, Paige put “Mark Petit”, her father.  

 Kevin also obtained Ryder’s medical records from his primary doctor.6 Kevin 

was not consulted with selecting this physician, and as stated, has never been 

informed of Ryder’s appointments until very recently. Ryder’s name is correct on 

these documents, but only after Kevin asked them to change it. Of note on these 

records, the social history states “lives with mom and her family. Father limited 

                                                 

5 See Ryder’s Summerlin Hospital records listed as Exhibit 7.  
6 See Ryder’s Durango Pediatrics records listed as Exhibit 8. 
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involvement.” Kevin has had weekly custody of Ryder for years—and filed his 

divorce and custody case when Ryder was only two months old.  

 For years, Kevin has expressed concerns over a possible speech issue with 

Ryder and has asked Paige if they could get him evaluated. Paige has always refused.  

 Kevin accompanied Paige to Ryder’s doctor appointment on July 25, 2018. 

From the beginning, Kevin felt the doctor was not taking him seriously, likely based 

on never having heard of him (and the records saying over and over Dad is minimally 

involved). Kevin wanted a referral to a family therapist and a speech evaluation. The 

concern with the family therapist stems from Ryder saying things making it unclear 

that he understands the dynamics of a split family. This was suggested for Ryder’s 

benefit.  

The doctor stated the speech referral could be done through “child find” but 

[Dad] wants a private referral because “child find” is only for children that have not 

yet started kindergarten (Ryder was about to start kindergarten two weeks later). The 

doctor was negative about the speech referral; therefore, Paige was also.  

 Then, on September 4th of this year, Kevin emailed Ryder’s teacher to 

formally request a speech evaluation. This was a formal request as Kevin had 

mentioned this to the teacher at a meet-and-greet event prior to school starting. Kevin 

thought this follow-up was just a formality. Instead, Kevin learned that the teacher 

had connected Paige and a speech therapist the night before at an open house—an 
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open house of which Kevin was never informed. Now, all of a sudden, Paige is 

acknowledging the issue as legitimate.  

 During the parties’ last court proceedings, the court made it clear that third-

parties could facilitate exchanges. In fact, Paige herself has regularly used third-

parties. Paige asserts in her Opposition that “grandmother” is a problem. But, it is 

grandmother who almost got run over when she tried to facilitate an exchange on 

Kevin’s behalf.  

 In December 2017, Grandmother attempted to retrieve Ryder from Paige on 

Kevin’s behalf. As she approached Paige’s car, which was parked backed in to a 

parking spot, she saw another person recording. Grandmother took out her phone to 

begin recording also. Then, Paige drove out of the parking spot, coming straight at 

Grandmother. Grandmother moved out of the way, with the car narrowly missing 

her. Grandmother called the police.7 

C. Paige’s Proposed Time Share Change is a Reduction to Kevin’s 

Time 

Paige asserts that her new proposed timeshare increases Kevin’s time. This is 

not true.  

                                                 

7 See police report filed by Grandmother on December 30, 2017 listed as Exhibit 9.  
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Based on the current order, in 2019, Kevin would have 105 days of visitation 

with Ryder.8  

Based on Paige’s proposal, the maximum time Kevin would have with Ryder 

in 2019 would be 98 days.9 And it could be less. Paige’s proposal allows each party 

to notice two weeks of vacation time. If both parties noticed their vacation on the 

other’s custodial time, Kevin would essentially lose the 14 days, leaving him with 

84 days— 21 days less than he would currently have.  

Ryder needs less time in Paige’s home and more time with Dad.  

D. Changed Circumstances 

 Paige asserts in her Opposition that there is no change of circumstances since 

the parties’ last custodial order. That is not true. The following has occurred since 

the parties’ last custodial order: 

1. Kevin has a new child who is Ryder’s little sister of whom 

Kevin has joint physical custody; 

2. Paige has failed to co-parent with Kevin and ignored his joint 

legal custody rights; 

                                                 

8 See Spreadsheet for 2019 under current custodial schedule listed as Exhibit 10. 
9 See Spreadsheet for 2019 under Paige’s proposal listed as Exhibit 11.  
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3. Ryder has signs of neglect, including five cavities for a four-

year-old, and more troubling, contracted scabies; unattended 

speech issues. 

4. Paige is cohabitating with a serious drug addict and criminal 

who has a long and recent history of troubling drug abuse— 

 which Paige is either lying about not knowing about; or, 

Paige is completely clueless as to whom she is allowing 

around the parties’ son. Either of which is a huge problem.  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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III. CONCLUSION 

BASED ON THE FOREGOING, Plaintiff requests this Court issue an Order: 

1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2. Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare;  

3. Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B;   

4. Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and,  

5.  For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.   

DATED this 14th day of September, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 

 

  

AA000119



AA000120



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 14th day of September, 2018, served a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s 

Reply To Defendant’s Opposition To Countermotion For Modification Of Physical 

Custody To Joint; Holiday And Vacation Schedule And Week On/Week Off 

Timeshare, & Modification Of Child Support: 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Mel Grimes, Esq. 
melg@grimes-law.com 
olivian@grimes-law.com 
 
  

/s/ Crystal Beville 
Crystal Beville 
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9/14/2018 1:54 PM
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